USA Gymnastics Women's Program Athlete Selection Committee Charter

The USA Gymnastics Athlete Selection Committee ("Committee") is an operating committee under the USA Gymnastics Bylaws and will work with the appropriate USA Gymnastics staff persons as set forth herein, such staff persons will be overseen by the President. The Committee is charged with selecting athletes to represent the United States of America at international competitions, including World Championships and the Olympic Games.

1. Composition. The Committee consists of no more than three (3) voting members. The following chart shows the composition of the Committee.

Committee	Voting or Non-voting
Athlete Representative	Voting (1)
High Performance Lead	Voting (1)
Athlete Selection Committee Representative	Voting (1)

2. Voting and Quorum Procedures. A majority of the voting Committee members present (in person or virtual), shall constitute a quorum. Once a quorum is established, a majority vote of the present (in person or virtual) Committee members shall constitute action of the Committee. All actions of the Committee are subject to oversight of the Board.

3. Procedures.

- The High Performance Lead is appointed by the IEC annually.
- The Athlete Representative is appointed by the Athlete's Council.
- The Athlete Selection Committee Representative is appointed by the IEC annually and must fulfill the following criteria:
 - i. Must have World Championship and/or Olympic experience as an athlete, coach, or judge.
 - ii. Not affiliated not currently competing, judging, or coaching in the U.S. Elite Program during the appointed year.
 - iii. Must be available to attend all Selection Camps and Qualifying competitions as outlined in the Selection Procedures or as deemed necessary.

4. Chairperson.

- There is no chairperson of the Athlete Selection Committee.
- **5. Meetings and Minutes.** The Committee shall hold at least two (2) meetings annually. Meetings may be in person or through video conference/conference calls. The Committee shall maintain minutes of all meetings, submit copies of all minutes to USAG's legal department for recordkeeping, and publish on the USAG website.

- **6. Attendance.** Committee members must attend in person, or participate by telephone or videoconference in, at least one half (1/2) of all regularly scheduled Committee meetings.
- 7. Action Without a Meeting. The Committee may take action without a meeting if written notice as described in this section (the "Notice") is given to each Committee member, and each member by the time stated in the Notice either votes in writing for or against such action, abstains in writing from voting, fails to respond or vote, or fails to demand in writing that action not be taken without a meeting. The Notice shall state the action to be taken, the time by which a Committee member must respond, and that failure to respond by the time stated in the Notice will be treated as an abstention. If, at the end of the time stated in the Notice, a majority of the Committee members have voted for the proposed action, then the action is approved and constitutes action of the Committee. All communications under this section may be transmitted or received by the Committee by email or other form of electronic communication. Action taken pursuant to this Section has the same effect as action taken at a meeting of the Committee.
- **8. Term Limits.** All members of the Committee (excluding Athlete Representatives) will serve a one (1) year term. Athlete Representatives will serve one (1) four-year term with a maximum of two (2) consecutive terms.
- 9. Vacancies & Removal. If a voting member's seat on the Committee becomes vacant during their term because of resignation, removal, incapacity, disability, or death, then the remaining Committee members will appoint a qualified individual to serve the remainder of that member's term or until the next regularly scheduled election, whichever occurs earlier. Any interim replacement Athlete Representative must be approved in advance by the Athletes Council. A member's position on the Committee also becomes vacant upon the expiration of the member's term. Any member may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Committee Chair, except the Committee Chair's resignation shall be given to Chair of the Women's Program Committee, with a copy to USA Gymnastics Chief Legal Officer. The resignation takes effect at the time specified in the written notice. The acceptance of the resignation by the Committee Chair is not necessary to make it effective.

Committee members will be removed by the Committee if they fail to attend in person, or participate by telephone or videoconference in, at least one half (1/2) of the regular meetings of the Committee during any twelve (12) month period, unless they are able to demonstrate to the other members of the Committee that the presence of exigent circumstances caused and excused the absences. In such circumstances, the absent member shall be removed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of the Committee (not including the voting power of the absent member). A Committee member may also be removed for cause at any duly noticed meeting of the Committee, and after being provided an opportunity for the member to be heard by the Committee, upon the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the total voting power of the Committee (excluding the voting power of the member in question).

10. Committee Duties.

- Select and assign athletes to represent the United States of America for all international Elite competitions, including World Championships and the Olympic Games.
- **11. Disclosure of Charter**. This charter shall be made available on the USA Gymnastics website.
- **12. Effectiveness and Amendment**. This Charter must be approved by the Board. Any amendment or other modifications of this Charter shall be made a majority vote of the voting members of the Committee, subject to approval by the Board.
- **13. Compensation**. No salary or other compensation shall be paid for serving as a member of the Committee.
- **14. Conflicts of Interest/Gifts & Entertainment/Confidential Information**. All members of the Committee will adhere to the USA Gymnastics' Conflicts of Interest Policy, Gifts and Entertainment Policy, and Confidential Information Policy, and are subject to the USA Gymnastics Leadership Eligibility and Service Policy.

Each year, all elected and appointed officials and committee members must submit a completed Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality Form to the National Office no later than: (i) two (2) weeks, or fourteen (14) days, following the acceptance of the elected or appointed position; or (ii) the last day of the respective committee's annual term of office renewal.

As the annual receipt of these documents is an eligibility requirement by both USA Gymnastics and the USOPC, any individual refusing to sign or submit these documents by the appropriate due date forfeits their opportunity to serve on any USA Gymnastics committee.